
 

AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

City Council Meeting  
March 15, 2018  

7:00 PM  
City Hall – Council Chambers 

665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  
 

Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, March 15, 2018 at 7:00 
pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be 
discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed 
Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at 
any time during the meeting. 

 
Call to Order 

 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 

The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By 
completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the 
City Council meeting.  However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot discuss issues 
raised or make any decisions but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda. 

 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 
4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements 
involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Community Interest. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
  



 
Consent Agenda 

All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single vote 
approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
3. Consent Agenda.  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the March 1, 2018 City Council meeting. (City Secretary 
Stacy Henderson)  

 
B. Consider approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services 

between the City of Lucas and Lovejoy Independent School District for EMS services 
at all school district football games. (Fire Chief Ted Stephens) 

Public Hearing Agenda  
 

4. Public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00879 approving the zoning of a 
recently annexed parcel of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 36.84 acres of 
land out of the James M. Snider Survey, Abstract No. 824, in Collin County, Texas, as 
described in volume 924, page 443, and generally located on the south side of Estates 
Parkway, one-half mile west of the intersection of Ingram Road and Estates Parkway (also 
commonly known as Claremont Springs, Phase 1) and consisting of approximately 24 lots, in 
the City of Lucas, Texas. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B. Conduct public hearing  
C. Take action regarding proposed zoning amendment 

 
5. Public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00878 approving the zoning of a 

recently annexed tract of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 62.97 acres of 
land out of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin County, Texas, as 
described in Volume 549, Page 333, and generally located on the north side of FM 1378, one-
half mile east of the intersection of FM 1378 and W. Lucas Road (also commonly known as 
Edgewood Estates) and consisting of approximately 49 lots. (Development Services Director Joe 
Hilbourn) 

 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B. Conduct public hearing  
C. Take action regarding proposed zoning amendment 

 
6. Public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00877 approving the zoning of a 

recently annexed parcel of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 32.97 acres of 
land out of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin County Texas, as 
described in volume 3928, page 145, and generally located on the east side of FM 1378, one-
quarter mile north of the intersection of FM 1378 and W. Lucas Road (also commonly known 
as Cimarron Estates) and consisting of approximately 25 lots in the City of Lucas, Texas. 
(Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B. Conduct public hearing  
C. Take action regarding proposed zoning amendment 

 



 

Regular Agenda 
 
7. Consider the request by Barrett Owens on behalf of Daniel and Lana Afseth for approval of a 

preliminary plat for a tract of land being 11.941 acres situated in the James Grayum Survey, 
abstract number 354 otherwise known as 1890 Estates Parkway. (Development Services Director 
Joe Hilbourn) 

 
8. Consider the appropriation of $8,307 from unrestricted general fund to provide payment to 

ES&H of Dallas, LLC for the hazardous materials incident and response that occurred on 
October 25, 2017. (Assistant Fire Chief/Emergency Management Coordinator Lance Gant) 

 
9. Provide direction to staff regarding the opportunity to add a fourth approach from 995 W. 

Lucas Road to the Country Club Road/W. Lucas Road intersection and make improvements 
to the northwest corner of the same intersection. (Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton 
Foerster) 

 
10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction agreement for the 

construction of the White Rock Trail Repairs with 1) DDM Construction Corporation in an 
amount not to exceed $187,590.00 plus 25% contingency in the amount of $46,800.00 for a 
total of $234,390 or 2) GRod Construction, LLC in an amount not to exceed $252,842.00 plus 
a 15% Contingency in the amount of $37,926.00 for a total of $290,768 using funds in 
account 11-8209-301 “Improvements Roads”.  (Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton 
Foerster) 

 
11. Consider various design elements of the Winningkoff Road Middle Section from the Reverse 

Curve Project to Snider Lane. (Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster) 

Executive Session 
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive 
Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any 
time during the meeting.  
 
12. Executive Session.  An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.    
 
13. Adjournment.  
 

Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on 
or before 5:00 p.m. on March 9, 2018.   

 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for 
persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed 
to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

  Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson, Fire Chief Ted Stephens  
 
Consent Agenda Items:   
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the March 1, 2018 City Council meeting. 
 

B. Consider approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services 
between the City of Lucas and Lovejoy Independent School District for EMS 
services at all school district football games.  

 
Background Information:  
 
Agenda Item 3C:  
 
The Interlocal Agreement with Lovejoy ISD has been in place since July 2014 with the City of 
Lucas providing EMS consisting of equipment and two EMTs and/or Paramedics at all home 
football games.  The rate proposed to charge Lovejoy ISD has changed from $54 to $78.00 in the 
new agreement.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Minutes of the March 1, 2018 City Council meeting 
2. Interlocal Agreement with Lovejoy Independent School District 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



C i t y  C o u n c i l       1 | P a g e   
M a r c h  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

March 1, 2018 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 
Minutes 

 
Call to Order 

 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
City Attorney Joe Gorfida 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
Fire Chief Ted Stephens  
Finance Director Liz Exum 
 

 
Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to silence their cell 
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 

Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen input at this meeting.  
 
 

Community Interest 
 
2. Community Interest.  
 
Mayor Olk reminded those in attendance that the City’s annual Founders Day event would be held 
on April 14, 2018. Mayor Olk also noted that the City’s General Election would be held on May 5 
with early voting beginning April 23.  He also noted that the City Council would be holding an open 
house to discuss street project updates from 6:00 to 7:00 pm on April 19 to discuss the Blondy 
Jhune project; May 3 to discuss the Winningkoff Road project; and May 17 to discuss the Stinson 
Road project.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke briefed the City Council on recent flooding that had occurred in the City 
and thanked the Public Works and Fire Rescue Departments for their hard work ensuring public 
safety.  
 
 



C i t y  C o u n c i l       2 | P a g e   
M a r c h  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

Consent Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda.  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 15, 2018 City Council meeting.  
 

B. Approval of the City of Lucas Investment Report for quarter ending December 31, 
2017.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed 
unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
Public Hearing Agenda 

 
4. Public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00876 amending the City’s 

Code of Ordinances, Section 14.01.004 - Definitions to add a definition for Pet 
Boarding, Pet, Livestock, adding Pet Boarding to the Schedule Use Chart, and 
establishing District requirements to the Code of Ordinances, Section 14.03.354 - 
Special District Requirements.  

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn briefed the City Council on the proposed amendment 
to add Pet Boarding as an allowable use to the City’s Zoning Ordinance and explained that the 
Planning and Zoning Commission had reviewed and approved the definition and district 
requirements.  Mr. Hilbourn noted that district requirements had been added for Pet Boarding along 
with the definition and district requirements for of pet and livestock.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that under Section 14.03.354 (E) of the proposed ordinance he would like to 
clarify the language to read “Pet Boarding shall only serve pets for a period not to exceed sixty (60) 
consecutive days. 
 
Councilmember Millsap stated that kennels were allowed within the Agricultural District and asked 
if Pet Boarding facilities should also be allowed within the Agricultural District with a specific use 
permit.  
 
The City Council discussed with the City Attorney and Development Services Director the 
definition and use of a kennel compared to a pet boarding facility. 
 
Mayor Olk opened the public hearing at 7:15pm.  There being no one wishing to speak, the public 
hearing was closed.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Mayor Olk to approve 

Ordinance 2018-03-00876 amending the City’s Code of Ordinances, Section 
14.01.004 - Definitions to add a definition for Pet Boarding, Pet, Livestock, adding 
Pet Boarding to the Schedule Use Chart, and establishing District requirements to 
the Code of Ordinances, Section 14.03.354 - Special District Requirements, and to 
also add Pet Boarding as an allowable use in the Agricultural zoning district with a  
specific use permit, and to add the following language to Section 14.03.354 (E) “Pet 
Boarding shall only serve pets for a period not to exceed sixty (60) consecutive 



C i t y  C o u n c i l       3 | P a g e   
M a r c h  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

days”.  The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 1 vote with Councilmember Fisher 
voting in opposition.  

  
Regular Agenda 

 
5. Consider the acceptance and approval of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 presented by BrooksWatson & 
Company.  

 
Mike Brooks with BrooksWatson & Company gave a presentation discussing the auditing process 
and the audit plan used for the City of Lucas.  Mr. Brooks reviewed the City’s revenues, expenses, 
change in fund balance and net position on the utility fund.  
 
Mayor Olk thanked staff and city management for their focus on public safety and street repairs in 
the fiscal year budget.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Duke 

to accept and approve the City of Lucas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 
fiscal year 2016-2017.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
6. Presentation by City of Lucas Fire Chief Ted Stephens and Demonstration of the 

City of Wylie Dispatch System by City of Wylie Assistant Fire Chief Blythe and 
consider changing EMS and Fire Dispatch Services from City of Plano Public Safety 
Communications to the City of Wylie Public Safety Communications and 
appropriating $86,300 from unrestricted general fund reserves to account number 11-
8300-452 (hardware and telecommunications).  

 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens gave a presentation discussing how existing emergency dispatch calls were 
dispersed.  He explained that when 911 calls were placed from Lucas, they were answered by Collin 
County then routed to Plano Public Safety Communications for dispatch to Lucas Fire-Rescue. 
Chief Stephens stated that Plano Public Safety Communications has provided dispatch services since 
2010 and with the growth of Collin County, communication challenges exist and continue to grow.  
 
Chief Stephens discussed the call volumes between Plano, Parker and Lucas, existing costs 
associated with dispatch services, and the lack of ability Plano Communications has to 
simultaneously dispatch mutual aid. Chief Stephens noted that currently, when mutual aid is needed, 
calls are manually made to other cities causing a lag in response time, and incorrect times have been 
posted due to non-automated systems. Chief Stephens noted that existing call times include 45 
seconds to receive a call and 14 additional seconds for a call to be dispatched to Lucas.  
 
Chief Stephens played several dispatched calls received through Plano Safety Communications 
where a delay in dispatch occurred as well as inconsistent times posted.  
 
Wylie Fire Chief Brandon Blythe came forward and explained to the City Council the automated 
dispatch service operated by the City of Wylie and gave a demonstration of an actual call and the 
speed in which mutual aid was dispersed. Chief Blythe discussed the CAD mapping system used by 
Wylie that was integrated with Collin County and Google Maps.  
 
Councilmember Lawrence asked the difference in response time Wylie has experienced with an 
automated system.  
 



C i t y  C o u n c i l       4 | P a g e   
M a r c h  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

Chief Blythe stated that Wylie went from a response time of two minutes down to 40 seconds.  
 
Chief Stephens stated that switching to the Wylie automated system would benefit the City with 
simultaneous dispatch of mutual aid and would reduce delays in response.  Chief Stephens stated 
that the City of Parker is also considering moving to Wylie Public Safety Communications, which 
could assist in reducing costs should they participate.  
 
Chief Blythe stated that funds from the City of Lucas would go towards a full-time dispatcher to 
assist with the additional incoming calls.  
 
The City Council discussed the need for a more regional approach related to dispatch services and 
mutual aid, the cost of existing services, and how mapping and calls for service would be managed.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to authorize the City Manager to implement the computer aided dispatch 
system for fire and emergency medical services by entering into agreements with US 
Digital Designs, Integrated Computer Systems, and the City of Wylie, and complete 
the purchasing of all necessary hardware and software to be able to implement the 
City of Wylie computer aided dispatch system effective October 1, 2018 and 
appropriate $86,300 from unrestricted general fund reserves to account number 11-
8300-452.   The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
7. Consider the acquisition of a new fire engine to replace the 1996 General Fire Engine 

(E862) and appropriate $738,698 from unrestricted general fund reserves, account 
number 11-8300-421 Fire Department Vehicles.  

 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens discussed the existing 1996 fire engine needing replacement that had over 
3,052 hours registered.  He stated the engine was scheduled for replacement in the 2016/2017 fiscal 
year budget.  Chief Stephens noted that the Vehicle Committee selected the engine proposed by 
Pierce in the amount of $738,698.  
 
Councilmember Fisher asked if any other funding options had been reviewed other than taking from 
general fund reserves.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke stated that a lease to purchase option had been evaluated; however, the 
interest rate would cost the City an additional $28,000.  Ms. Clarke stated that she proposed the cost 
of the engine be split between fiscal years with the down payment being paid the first year, and the 
remainder of the amount being paid the second year.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that if the City could obtain better pricing by paying for the engine in total upfront 
that should be considered rather than waiting and potentially have pricing increase. 
 
The City Council discussed the amount of funding in general fund reserves.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Lawrence, seconded by Councilmember 

Millsap to authorize the City Manager to negotiate all documents associated with the 
acquisition of the Pierce engine in an amount not to exceed $738,698.  The motion 
passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
 



C i t y  C o u n c i l       5 | P a g e   
M a r c h  1 ,  2 0 1 8  

8. Consider repairs to the 2007 Ford F-450 Ambulance (Medic 862), the acquisition of a 
new ambulance to replace Medic 862 and amend the fiscal year 17/18 budget by 
allocating unrestricted general fund reserves.  

 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens stated that Medic 862 was put into service on April 1, 2014 with an 
estimated useful life of 5 years.  Medic 862 has responded to 30 medical calls from April 1, 2014 to 
December 1, 2017, and since December 2, 2017 has responded to an additional 82 medical calls.  
Chief Stephens stated that the increased usage of Medic 862 occurred while Medic 861 was 
experiencing mechanical issues. 
 
Chief Stephens stated that Medic 862 was experiencing loss of compression in the engine, oil leaks, 
slippage in the transmission, no air conditioning in the cab area, and the electronics were beginning 
to fail. 
 
The City Council discussed the funds needed for repairs and setting aside funds in the amount of 
$150,000 annually to save money for the purchase of an ambulance in two years.  
 
Mayor Olk, Mayor Pro Tem Peele and Councilmember Lawrence stated they were in favor of 
repairing Medic 862 and setting aside funds for purchase in two years.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Fisher to allocate 

$30,000 from general fund reserves to conduct the necessary repairs to Medic 862 
with the intent of replacing Medic 862 within two to three years.  The motion passed 
unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

Executive Session 
 
9. Executive Session.   
 
An Executive Session did not occur at this meeting.  
 
10. Adjournment 
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Duke to adjourn the meeting at 9:26 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 
0 vote.  

 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 

 
        ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor      Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF COLLIN 

§ 

§ 

§ 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

This Interlocai Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and between the City of Lucas, 
Texas ("City") and the Lovejoy Independent School District ("LISD''), (each a "Party" and 
collectively the "Parties"). acting by and through their duly authorized representatives. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS. this Agreement is being entered into pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation 
Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 791.001, et seq. (the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, City and LISD are units of local governments engaged in the provision of 
governmental functions and services to their citizens as defined by Section 791.003 of the Act� 
and 

WHEREAS, these functions and services serve the public health, safety and welfare, 
promote efficiency and effectiveness of local government and are of mutual concern to the 
parties; and 

\\THEREAS, LlSD desires to have Emergency Medical Services provided by the City at 
all Lovejoy Independent School District home football games (varsity, junior varsity and middle 
school); and 

NO'W, THEREFORE, in consi<leration of the mutual promises and benefits contained 
herein, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

Article I 

Term 

The term of this A.greement shalJ be for a period of one year commenci.'1g on the last date 
of execution hereof (the "Effective Date") and shall thereafter automatically continue for 
successive terms of one ( 1) year each, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 

Article II 
Scope ofWol'k 

2.1 City shall provide one on-site equipment with two qualified personnel at LISD home 
football games (varsity, junior varsity and middle school) at either Lovejoy High School field, 
2350 Estates Parkvvay, or Willow Springs Middle School, 1101 West Lucas Road. 

2.2 On-site equipment and service will remain dedicated to the LISD event and will not be 
available for other routine EMS calls. If an on-site injury occurs at the event requiring

CITY OF LUCAS/LoVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

l:'liTERl,OCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES- PAGE ] 



ambulance transport services, another ambulance and crew will be immediately routed to the 
event to transport the patient. 

2.3 The coordination of the games requiring City's services shall be assigned to the 
City Manager, or his/her designee; and the LISD Superintendent, or his/her designee. LISD shall 
notify and provide the City with the game schedule(s) thirty (30) days prior to the first game. 
LISD shall notify the City of any modifications to the game schedule, including date, time or 
location, not later than 72 hours in advance. 

Article Ill 

Compensation 

3.1 LISD shall compensate the City in the amount of $78.00 per hour for two (2) 
emergency medical technicians and/or paramedics and equipment for each LISD home football 
game (varsity, junior varsity and middle school). 

3.2 City shall bill and collect all allowable fees and costs if it is necessary to provide a 
medical transport. 

3.3 In the unlikely condition of certain extreme, catastrophic, or immediate 
life-threatening emergencies requiring the City to utilize the equipment and crew dedicated to the 
LISD event or a lapse of on-site coverage occurs, all fees associated with this Agreement for the 
event will be waived. 

Article IV 

Termination 

4.1 This Agreement may be terminated by the City in the event the LISD breaches any of 
the terms or conditions of this Agreement and, such breach is not cured within thirty (30) days 
after written notice thereof from City to the LISD, provided, however, that in the event the breach 
cannot be cured through diligent effort within such thirty (30) day period and the LISD 
conm1ences action to cure such breach within such thirty (30) day period and diligently pursues 
such action and the City shall extend the period to cure for an additional thirty (30) days. 

4.2 City or LISD may cancel this Agreement for any reason and at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail to the other Party to this Agreement. Both the 
City and LISD agree that upon the termination of this Agreement that neither Party shall have 
any liability whatsoever to the other Party. 

Article V 

Miscellaneous 

5.1 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 
benefit of the Parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 

CITI' OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY JNOf.PE:\'DENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

INTERLOCAL AGREEME:-iT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL. SERVICES- PAGE 2 



successors, and assigns. This Agreement may not be assigned without the written consent of the 
other Party. 

5 .2 Limitation on Liability. It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the 
te1ms hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to creale a partnership or joint venture 
among the Parties. It is understood and agreed an1ong the Parties that each Party, in satisfying the 
conditions of this Agreement, ha-, acted independently, and each Party assumes no 
responsibilities or liabilities to third Parties in connection with these actions. 

5.3 Authorization. Each Party represents that it has full capacity and authority to grant all 
rights and assume all obligations that is granted and assumed under this Agreement. 

5.4 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed 
received three (3) days thereafter sent by United States ·Mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, 
return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address set forth below or on the day 
actually received when sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered. 

If intended for City: 
City of Lucas, Texas 
Attn: Joni Clarke, City Manager 
665 Country Club Road 
Lucas, Texas 75002 

If intended for LISD: 
Lovejoy Independent School District 
Attn: Ted Moore, Superintendent 
259 Country Club Road 
Allen, Texas 7 5002 

\Vith copy to: 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, L.L.P. 
1800 Ross Tower 
500 N. Akard 
Dallas, Texas 75002 

With copy to: 
Robert H. Roeder 
Abernathy, Roeder, Boyd & Joplin, P.C. 
1700 Redbud Blvd., #300 
McKinney. Texas 75069 

5.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the complete agreement of the 
Parties hereto, superseding all oral or written, previous and contemporary agreements between 
the Parties and relating to the matters in this Agreement. and except as otherwise provided herein 
cannot be modified without \vritten agreement of the Parties to be attached to and made a part of 
this Agreement. 

5.6 Governing Law. The validity of this Agreement and any of its terms and 
provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the Parties, shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Texas; and venue for any act.ion concerning this Agreement shall be in District Court of 
Collin County, Texas. The Parties agree to submit to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction 
of said court. 

5.7 
of the Parties. 

Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by the mutual \Vritten agreement 

5.8 Force Majeure. No Party will be liable for any default or delay in the 
perfonnance of its obligations under this Agreement if and to the extent such default or delay is 

CfI
T 

OF LllCAs/LoVE.JOY ll'ilOEPENllENT SCHOOL DIS
T

RICT 

INTERLOCA L AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES- PAGE 3 



caused, directly or indirectly, by fire, flood, earthquake, elements of nature or acts of God, riots, 
civil disorders, acts of te1Torism or any similar cause beyond the reasonable control of such 
party, provided that the non-performing party is without fault in causing such de fault or delay. 
The non-performing Party agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to recommence 
performance as soon as possible. 

5.9 Legal Construction. In the event anyone or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable. 

5 .10 Recitals. The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein. 

5.11 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each of the 
counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but any of the counterparts shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. 

5.12 Exhibits. Any exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference for 
all purposes wherever reference is made to the sa.'llc. 

5.13 Survival of Covenants. Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
obligations of the Parties set forth in this Agreement shall survive termination. 

5 .14 Compliance with Laws. The Parties shall folly comply with all local, state and 
federal laws, including all codes, ordinances and regulations applicable to this Agreement and 
the work to be done thereunder, which exist or which may be enacted later by governmental 
bodies having jurisdicti0n or authority for such enactment. 

5 .15 Severability. In the event any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, phrase or 
word herein is held invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, the balance of this Agreement shall be 
enforceahle and shall he enforced as if the Parties intended at all times to delete said invalid 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, phrase or word. 

(signature page to follow) 

CITY OF LUCAS/LOVEJOY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERW:NCY MEDICAL SERVICES - PAGE 4 



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF COLLIN 

§ 
§ 
§ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of ________, 20___, 
by Joni Clarke, Mayor of the City of Lucas, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of 
the State of Texas, in such capacity on behalf of such municipal corporation . 

Cln' OF LliCAS/l,O\'EJOY 1NDEPENDENT S
o

mo,. D1STRICT 

(NTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY ME:DICALSERVICES- PACE 5 

EXECUTED this _______ day of _________________________, 2018.

City of Lucas, Texas

By: ___________________________________
Joni Clarke, City Manager

Approved as to Form:

By:  ___________________________________
Joseph Gorfida Jr., City Attorney

___________________________
Notary Public, State of Texas

My Commission Expires
___________________________



CITY OF [,HCAS/LOVF..JOY JNOF.PENDF.NT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

JNTF.RLO<'AI, AGRF.F.!\IF.NT FOR F.'\fF.RGF.!\'CY MF.mC/\1. SrnnrF.s- PAGF. 6 

EXECUTED this _______ day of _________________________, 2018.

Lovejoy Independent School District

By:_________________________      
Ted Moore, Superintendent

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF COLLIN 

§ 
§ 
§ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of ________, 20___, 
by Ted Moore, Superintendent of Lovejoy Independent School District, on behalf of said 
independent school district.

___________________________
Notary Public, State of Texas

My Commission Expires
___________________________



Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00879 approving the zoning of a 
recently annexed parcel of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 36.84 acres of land 
out of the James M. Snider Survey, Abstract No. 824, in Collin County, Texas, as described in 
volume 924, page 443, and generally located on the south side of Estates Parkway, one-half mile 
west of the intersection of Ingram Road and Estates Parkway (also commonly known as 
Claremont Springs, Phase 1) and consisting of approximately 24 lots, in the City of Lucas, 
Texas.  

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B. Conduct public hearing  
C. Take action regarding proposed zoning amendment 

 
Background Information:  
 
This is the second public hearing of the two-required public hearings for zoning consideration for 
Claremont Springs, Phase 1.  These parcels were annexed on October 25, 2017 and are currently 
zoned Agricultural.  These parcels are being rezoned to match the existing use of residential, 1-
acre lots.  
          
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Depiction 
2. Legal Description 
3. Public hearing notice  
4. Ordinance 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended to approve the request to 
rezone Claremont Springs, Phase 1 from Agricultural to Residential-1. 
 
Motion:  
I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00879 approving the zoning of a 
recently annexed parcel of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 36.84 acres of land 
out of the James M. Snider Survey, Abstract No. 824, in Collin County, Texas, as described in 
volume 924, page 443, and generally located on the south side of Estates Parkway, one-half mile 
west of the intersection of Ingram Road and Estates Parkway (also commonly known as 
Claremont Springs, Phase 1) and consisting of approximately 24 lots, in the City of Lucas, 
Texas.  



 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description 

Claremont Springs Phase 1 
 

BEING a tract of land situated in the James M. Snider Survey, Abstract No. 824, Collin County, Texas and being 
part of a tract of land conveyed to Richard L. Cunningham, Trustee by deed recorded in Volume 924, Page 443, 
Deed Records, Collin County, Texas and being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) being 990.00 feet East, 36.00 
feet South and 1,367.95 feet East of the Northwest corner of said James M. Snider Survey, said point also being at 
the West corner of a corner clip at the intersection of the South right—of—way line of F.M. 2170 (100 foot right—
of—way) and the West right—of—way line of C.R. 262 (variable width gravel road); 

THENCE South 43 degrees 24 minutes 11 seconds East, along the Southwest line of said corner clip, a 
distance of 42.84 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found for corner; 

THENCE East, a distance of 2.50 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) in the West 
right-of—way line of said C.R. 262; 

THENCE South 00 degrees 03 minutes 51 seconds West, along the West right—of—way line of said C.R. 262, a 
distance of 1331.09 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found at the Northeast corner of a tract of land conveyed to Donald 
Ray. Burden, Jr. by deed recorded in Volume 4598, Page 2724, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas; 

THENCE North 89 degrees 54 minutes 53 seconds West, along the North property line of said Donald Ray Burden, 
Jr. tract, a distance of 1402.76 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found in the East property line of a tract of land 
conveyed to Juliette Fowler Homes by deed recorded in Volume 816, Page 165, Deed Records, Collin County, 
Texas; 

THENCE North 00 degrees 11 minutes 02 seconds East, along the East property line of said Juliette Fowler 
Homes, a distance of 442.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap. stamped (DC&A INC) for 
corner; 

THENCE East, a distance of 330.87 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) for corner; 

THENCE North 00. degrees 00 minutes 1.5 seconds West, a distance of 917.23 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with 
yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) in the South right-of—way line of said F.M. 2170; 

THENCE East, along the South right—of —way line of said F.M. 2170, a distance of 1040.09 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 1,604,829.11 square feet or 36.8418 acres of land. 

 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, 
Texas (the “City”), will conduct a Public Hearing on Thursday , March 8, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. and 
City Council will conduct a second Public Hearing on Thursday, March 15, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at 
Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, Texas to consider a request for a change in zoning from 
AO to R-1 of a recently annexed parcel of land hereinafter described. Both public hearings will be 
held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property 
to be considered for Zoning is located in Collin County, Texas, and described as follows: 
 
BEING a tract of land situated in the James M. Snider Survey, Abstract No. 824, Collin County, 
Texas and being part of a tract of land conveyed to Richard L. Cunningham, Trustee by deed 
recorded in Volume 924, Page 443, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas and being more 
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
BEGINNING at a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) being 990.00 
feet East, 36.00 feet South and 1,367.95 feet East of the Northwest corner of said James M. Snider 
Survey, said point also being at the West corner of a corner clip at the intersection of the South 
right—of—way line of F.M. 2170 (100 foot right—of—way) and the West right—of—way line of 
C.R. 262 (variable width gravel road); 
THENCE South 43 degrees 24 minutes 11 seconds East, along the Southwest line of said corner 
clip, a distance of 42.84 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found for corner; 
THENCE East, a distance of 2.50 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped 
(DC&A INC) in the West right-of—way line of said C.R. 262; 
THENCE South 00 degrees 03 minutes 51 seconds West, along the West right—of—way line of 
said C.R. 262, a distance of 1331.09 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found at the Northeast corner of a 
tract of land conveyed to Donald Ray. Burden, Jr. by deed recorded in Volume 4598, Page 2724, 
Deed Records, Collin County, Texas; 
THENCE North 89 degrees 54 minutes 53 seconds West, along the North property line of said 
Donald Ray Burden, Jr. tract, a distance of 1402.76 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found in the East 
property line of a tract of land conveyed to Juliette Fowler Homes by deed recorded in Volume 
816, Page 165, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas; 
THENCE North 00 degrees 11 minutes 02 seconds East, along the East property line of said Juliette 
Fowler Homes, a distance of 442.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap. stamped 
(DC&A INC) for corner; 
THENCE East, a distance of 330.87 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped 
(DC&A INC) for corner; 
THENCE North 00. degrees 00 minutes 1.5 seconds West, a distance of 917.23 feet to a 5/8 inch 
iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) in the South right-of—way line of said 
F.M. 2170; 
THENCE East, along the South right—of —way line of said F.M. 2170, a distance of 1040.09 feet 
to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 1,604,829.11 square feet or 36.8418 acres of land. 
   
 
Otherwise known as Claremont Springs Phase 1. 

 



Those wishing to speak for or against the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable to 
attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention:  City Secretary, 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email shenderson@lucastexas.us and it will be 
presented at the hearing. If you have any question about the request contact Joe Hilbourn at 
jhilbourn@lucastexas.us. 
 
      
      Stacy Henderson, 
      City Secretary, LUCAS, Texas 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


 
City of Lucas  
Ordinance 2018-03-00879 (Change in Zoning – Claremont Springs Phase 1) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018          TM95559 

ORDINANCE 2018-03-00879 
[CHANGE IN ZONING – CLAREMONT SPRINGS PHASE 1] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A CHANGE IN 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R1-
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 1-ACRE LOTS, ON ±36.8418-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND, BEING A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE JAMES 
M. SNIDER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 824, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS 
AND BEING PART OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO RICHARD L. 
CUNNINGHAM, TRUSTEE BY DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 924, PAGE 
443, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, MORE COMMONLY 
KNOWN AS CLAREMONT SPRINGS PHASE 1, AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT “A” AND 
EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED HERETO; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City Council 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with reference to the 
granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by publication and 
otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, and 
the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that said zoning change should 
be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map should be amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas, are 
hereby amended to grant a change in zoning from Agricultural District to R1-Single-Family 
Residential, 1-acre lots, on ±36.8418-acre tract of land, being a tract pf land situated in the James M. 
Snider Survey, Abstract No. 824, Collin County, Texas and being part of a tract of land conveyed to 
Richard L. Cunningham, Trustee by deed recorded in Volume 924, Page 443, Deed Records, Collin 
County, Texas, more commonly known as Claremont Springs Phase 1, and being more particularly 
described and depicted on Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and made part hereof for all 
purposes.   
 
Section 2. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this ordinance and 
other ordinances of the City of Lucas governing the use and development of the Property and which 
are not expressly amended by this ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance shall be controlling.  
 



 
City of Lucas  
Ordinance 2018-03-00879 (Change in Zoning – Claremont Springs Phase 1) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018          TM95559 

Section 3. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of 
said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 6. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as amended, 
and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall continue 
shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 7. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 15th DAY OF MARCH, 2018. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr.    Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(01-26-2018/95559) 
      



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance 2018-03-00879 (Change in Zoning – Claremont Springs Phase 1) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(±36.8418-Acre Tract – Claremont Springs Phase 1) 

Legal Description 

BEING a tract of land situated in the James M. Snider Survey, Abstract No. 824, Collin 
County, Texas and being part of a tract of land conveyed to Richard L. Cunningham, 
Trustee by deed recorded in Volume 924, Page 443, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas 
and being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) 
being 990.00 feet East, 36.00 feet South and 1,367.95 feet East of the Northwest corner of 
said James M. Snider Survey, said point also being at the West corner of a corner clip at 
the intersection of the South right—of—way line of F.M. 2170 (100 foot right—of—way) 
and the West right—of—way line of C.R. 262 (variable width gravel road); 

THENCE South 43 degrees 24 minutes 11 seconds East, along the Southwest line 
of said corner clip, a distance of 42.84 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found for corner; 

THENCE East, a distance of 2.50 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped 
(DC&A INC) in the West right-of—way line of said C.R. 262; 

THENCE South 00 degrees 03 minutes 51 seconds West, along the West right—of—way 
line of said C.R. 262, a distance of 1331.09 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found at the 
Northeast corner of a tract of land conveyed to Donald Ray. Burden, Jr. by deed recorded 
in Volume 4598, Page 2724, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas; 

THENCE North 89 degrees 54 minutes 53 seconds West, along the North property line of 
said Donald Ray Burden, Jr. tract, a distance of 1402.76 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found 
in the East property line of a tract of land conveyed to Juliette Fowler Homes by deed 
recorded in Volume 816, Page 165, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas; 

THENCE North 00 degrees 11 minutes 02 seconds East, along the East property line of 
said Juliette Fowler Homes, a distance of 442.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with 
yellow plastic cap. stamped (DC&A INC) for corner; 

THENCE East, a distance of 330.87 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped 
(DC&A INC) for corner; 

THENCE North 00. degrees 00 minutes 1.5 seconds West, a distance of 917.23 feet to a 
5/8 inch iron rod set with yellow plastic cap stamped (DC&A INC) in the South right-
of—way line of said F.M. 2170; 

THENCE East, along the South right—of —way line of said F.M. 2170, a distance of 
1040.09 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 1,604,829.11 square feet or 
36.8418 acres of land. 

 



 
Exhibit “B” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance 2018-03-00879 (Change in Zoning – Claremont Springs Phase 1) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
(±36.8418-Acre Tract – Claremont Springs Phase 1) 

Depiction 

 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00878 approving the zoning of a 
recently annexed tract of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 62.97 acres of land 
out of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin County, Texas, as described in 
Volume 549, Page 333, and generally located on the north side of FM 1378, one-half mile east of 
the intersection of FM 1378 and W. Lucas Road (also commonly known as Edgewood Estates) 
and consisting of approximately 49 lots. 
 

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B. Conduct public hearing  
C. Take action regarding proposed zoning amendment 

 
Background Information:  
 
This is the second public hearing of the two-required public hearings for zoning consideration for 
Edgewood Estates.  These parcels were annexed on October 25, 2017 and are currently zoned 
Agricultural.  These parcels are being rezoned to match the existing use of residential, 1-acre 
lots.  
                
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Depiction 
2. Legal Description 
3. Public hearing notice 
4. Ordinance 2018-03-00878 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
N/A 

Recommendation:  
The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended to approve the request to 
rezone Edgewood Estates from Agricultural to Residential-1. 
 
Motion:  
I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00878 approving the zoning of a 
recently annexed tract of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 62.97 acres of land 
out of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin County, Texas, as described in 
Volume 549, Page 333, and generally located on the north side of FM 1378, one-half mile east of 
the intersection of FM 1378 and W. Lucas Road (also commonly known as Edgewood Estates) 
and consisting of approximately 49 lots. 



Exhibit B 
Depiction 

Edgewood Estates 
 
 

 



 

 

 

  



Exhibit A 
Legal description  
Edgewood Estates 

 
BEING, a tract of land situated in the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin County, 
Texas, being a part of a 71.19 acre tract, as described in Volume 549, Page 333, in the Deed Records of 
Collin County, Texas, and more particular described as follows: 

Beginning, at ½ inch iron rod set at the northeast corner of Cimarron Phase 1, an addition to the City of 
Lucas, as described in Volume, Page in the Plat Records of Collin County, Texas: 

Thence, South 89⁰ 43’22” East, along the north line of said 71.19 acre tract, for a distance of 825.00 feet, 
to a ½ inch rod set; 

Thence, South 00⁰ 35’59” West, along the east lines of the 71.19 acre tract, for a distance of 570.020 feet, 
to a ½ inch iron rod set; 

Thence, South 89⁰15’50” East, continuing along said the east line, for a distance of 464.13 feet, to a to a 
½ inch iron rod set; 

Thence, South 00⁰0346” West, continuing along said east line, for a distance of 485.39 feet, to a to a ½ 
inch iron rod set; 

Thence, South 00⁰14’24” West, continuing along said east line, for a distance of 527.89 feet, to a to a ½ 
inch iron rod set; 

Thence, South 00⁰09’04” West, continuing along said east line, for a distance of 711.34 feet, to a to a ½ 
inch iron rod set; 

Thence, North 89⁰50’56” West, departing said east line, for a distance of 178.84 feet, to a to a ½ inch iron 
rod set on a non-tangent curve to the right, for an arc distance of 60.00 feet, a central angle of 134⁰ 
50’48” and a tangent of 144.31 feet; 

Thence, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 141.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 77⁰10’07” 
West – 110.81 feet), to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 

Thence, North 89⁰43’22” West, for a distance of 313.80 feet, to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 

Thence, South 00⁰16’38” West, for a distance of 289.81 feet, to a to a ½ inch iron rod set in the south line 
of said 71.19 acre tract also being in the north line of F.M. 1378 (90’ R.O. W.); 

Thence, North 89⁰43’22” West, along said north and south lines , for a distance of 70.00 feet, to a to a ½ 
inch iron rod set; 

Thence, North 00⁰16’38” East, departing said north and south lines, for a distance of 289.81 feet, to a to a 
½ inch iron rod set; 



Thence, North 89⁰43’22” West, for a distance of 335.35 feet, to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; on a non-
tangent curve to the right, having a radius of 60.00 feet, a central angle of 164⁰ 03’21”; 

Thence, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 171.80 feet (Chord Bearing North 62⁰00’34” 
West – 118.84 feet), to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 

Thence, North 89⁰43’21” West, for a distance of 179.82 feet, a to a ½ inch iron rod set in the west line of 
said 71.19 acre tract being in the east line of 2.00 acre tract, as described in Volume 948, Page 428, in the 
Deed Records of Collin County, Texas; 

Thence, North 00⁰03’59” East, along the west line of said 71.19 acre tract and the east line of said 2.0 
acre tract, at 62.28 feet passing a 5/8 inch rod found at the northeast corner of said 2.00 acre also being 
the southeast corner of said Cimarron Phase I, for a total distance of 1021.44 feet, a to a ½ inch iron rod 
set; 

Thence, North 00⁰30’35” East, along said west line and with the east line of said Cimarron Phase I, for a 
distance of 1247.36 feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 62.976 acres of land. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, 
Texas (the “City”), will conduct a Public Hearing on Thursday , March 8, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. and 
City Council will conduct a second Public Hearing on Thursday, March 15, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at 
Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, Texas to consider a request for a change in zoning from 
AO to R-1 of a recently annexed parcel of land hereinafter described. Both public hearings will be 
held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property 
to be considered for Zoning is located in Collin County, Texas, and described as follows: 
   
BEING, a tract of land situated in the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin 
County, Texas, being a part of a 71.19 acre tract, as described in Volume 549, Page 333, in the 
Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, and more particular described as follows: 
Beginning, at ½ inch iron rod set at the northeast corner of Cimarron Phase 1, an addition to the 
City of Lucas, as described in Volume, Page in the Plat Records of Collin County, Texas: 
Thence, South 89⁰ 43’22” East, along the north line of said 71.19 acre tract, for a distance of 
825.00 feet, to a ½ inch rod set; 
Thence, South 00⁰ 35’59” West, along the east lines of the 71.19 acre tract, for a distance of 
570.020 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, South 89⁰15’50” East, continuing along said the east line, for a distance of 464.13 feet, 
to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, South 00⁰0346” West, continuing along said east line, for a distance of 485.39 feet, to a 
to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, South 00⁰14’24” West, continuing along said east line, for a distance of 527.89 feet, to a 
to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, South 00⁰09’04” West, continuing along said east line, for a distance of 711.34 feet, to a 
to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, North 89⁰50’56” West, departing said east line, for a distance of 178.84 feet, to a to a ½ 
inch iron rod set on a non-tangent curve to the right, for an arc distance of 60.00 feet, a central 
angle of 134⁰ 50’48” and a tangent of 144.31 feet; 
Thence, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 141.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 
77⁰10’07” West – 110.81 feet), to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, North 89⁰43’22” West, for a distance of 313.80 feet, to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, South 00⁰16’38” West, for a distance of 289.81 feet, to a to a ½ inch iron rod set in the 
south line of said 71.19 acre tract also being in the north line of F.M. 1378 (90’ R.O. W.); 
Thence, North 89⁰43’22” West, along said north and south lines , for a distance of 70.00 feet, to a 
to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, North 00⁰16’38” East, departing said north and south lines, for a distance of 289.81 feet, 
to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, North 89⁰43’22” West, for a distance of 335.35 feet, to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; on a 
non-tangent curve to the right, having a radius of 60.00 feet, a central angle of 164⁰ 03’21”; 
Thence, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 171.80 feet (Chord Bearing North 
62⁰00’34” West – 118.84 feet), to a to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, North 89⁰43’21” West, for a distance of 179.82 feet, a to a ½ inch iron rod set in the west 
line of said 71.19 acre tract being in the east line of 2.00 acre tract, as described in Volume 948, 
Page 428, in the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas; 



Thence, North 00⁰03’59” East, along the west line of said 71.19 acre tract and the east line of said 
2.0 acre tract, at 62.28 feet passing a 5/8 inch rod found at the northeast corner of said 2.00 acre 
also being the southeast corner of said Cimarron Phase I, for a total distance of 1021.44 feet, a to 
a ½ inch iron rod set; 
Thence, North 00⁰30’35” East, along said west line and with the east line of said Cimarron Phase 
I, for a distance of 1247.36 feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 62.976 acres of 
land. 
 
Otherwise known as Edgewood Estates. 
 
 
Those wishing to speak for or against the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable to 
attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention:  City Secretary, 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email shenderson@lucastexas.us and it will be 
presented at the hearing. If you have any question about the request contact Joe Hilbourn at 
jhilbourn@lucastexas.us. 
 
      
      Stacy Henderson, 
      City Secretary, LUCAS, Texas 
 
 
  
 
 
 

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


 
City of Lucas  
Ordinance 2018-03-00878 (Change in Zoning – Edgewood Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018          TM95527 

ORDINANCE 2018-03-00878 
[CHANGE IN ZONING – EDGEWOOD ESTATES] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A CHANGE IN 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R1-
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 1-ACRE LOTS, ON ±62.976-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND, BEING A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE 
BENJAMIN SPARKS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 813, COLLIN COUNTY, 
TEXAS, BEING PART OF A 71.19-ACRE TRACT, AS DESCRIBED IN 
VOLUME 549, PAGE 333, IN THE DEED RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, 
MORE COMMONLY KNOWN AS EDGEWOOD ESTATES, AND BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT “A” 
AND EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED HERETO; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City Council 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with reference to the 
granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by publication and 
otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, and 
the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that said zoning change should 
be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map should be amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas, are 
hereby amended to grant a change in zoning from Agricultural District to R1-Single Family 
Residential, 1-acre lots, on ±62.976-acre tract of land, being part of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, 
Abstract No. 813, in Collin County, Texas, being a part of a 71.19-acre tract, as described in Volume 
549, Page 333, in the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly described 
and depicted on Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.   
 
Section 2. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this ordinance and 
other ordinances of the City of Lucas governing the use and development of the Property and which 
are not expressly amended by this ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance shall be controlling.  
 
Section 3. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of 
said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 



 
City of Lucas  
Ordinance 2018-03-00878 (Change in Zoning – Edgewood Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018          TM95527 

 
Section 4. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 6. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as amended, 
and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall continue 
shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 7. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 15TH DAY OF MARCH, 2018. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr.    Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(01-26-2018/95527) 
 
 
      



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-03-00878 (Change in Zoning – Edgewood Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(±62.976-Acre Tract – Edgewood Estates) 

Legal Description 

 
  



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-03-00878 (Change in Zoning – Edgewood Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 

 
 
 



 
Exhibit “B” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-03-00878 (Change in Zoning – Edgewood Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
(±62.976-Acre Tract – Edgewood Estates) 

Depiction 
 
 

 
 
 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00877 approving the zoning of a 
recently annexed parcel of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 32.97 acres of land 
out of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin County Texas, as described in 
volume 3928, page 145, and generally located on the east side of FM 1378, one-quarter mile 
north of the intersection of FM 1378 and W. Lucas Road (also commonly known as Cimarron 
Estates) and consisting of approximately 25 lots in the City of Lucas, Texas.  
 

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B. Conduct public hearing  
C. Take action regarding proposed zoning amendment 

 
Background Information:  
 
This is the second public hearing of the two-required public hearings for zoning consideration for 
Cimarron Estates.  These parcels were annexed on October 25, 2017 and are currently zoned 
Agricultural.  These parcels are being rezoned to match the existing use of residential, 1-acre 
lots.  
         
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Depiction 
2. Legal Description 
3. Public hearing notice  
4. Ordinance 2018-03-00877 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
N/A 

Recommendation:  
The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended to approve the request to 
rezone Cimarron Estates from Agricultural to Residential-1. 
 
Motion:  
I make a motion to approve/deny adopting Ordinance 2018-03-00877 approving the zoning of a 
recently annexed parcel of land from AO to R-1 consisting of approximately 32.97 acres of land 
out of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract No. 813, in Collin County Texas, as described in 
volume 3928, page 145, and generally located on the east side of FM 1378, one-quarter mile 
north of the intersection of FM 1378 and W. Lucas Road (also commonly known as Cimarron 
Estates) and consisting of approximately 25 lots in the City of Lucas, Texas.  



 Depiction 
Cimarron 

 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description 
Cimarron Estates 

 
BEING, a tract of land situated in the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract NO. 813, in Collin 
County, Texas, being out of a 70.00 acre tract, as described in Volume 3928, Page 145, in the 
Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:  
BEGINNING, at a 5/8 inch iron rod found the northwest corner of Lucas UMC, and addition to 
the City of Lucas, as described in Volume 948, Page 145, in said deed records; 
 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 420.19 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod found at the 
northwest corner of Lucas UMC; 
THENCE, North 00° 19’07” East, for a distance of 19.00 feet, to a ½ iron rod set; 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 333.41 feet, to a ½ iron set on a non-tangent 
curve to the left, having a radius of 665.00 feet, a central angle of 01°18’37”, and a tangent of 
7.60 feet; 
THENCE, along said curve to the left for an arc distance of 15.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 02° 
05’44” East 15.21 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set a curve to the right, having a radius of 65.00 
feet, a central angle of 97°11’21”; 
THENCE, along said curve to the right for arc distance of  15.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 40° 
16’44” East 15.21 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set at the point of compound curvature of a curve to 
the right, having a radius of 735.00 feet, a central angle of 08°31’36”, and a tangent of 54.79 
feet;  
THENCE, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 109.38 feet (Chord Bearing North 
04° 03’08” West 109.28 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set at the point of tangency; 
THENCE, North 00° 12’40” East, for a distance of 180.90 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 300.00 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set, in the 
east line of F.M. 1378 (90 R.O.W.); 
THENCE, North 00 ° 12’40” East, along the east line of said F.M. 1378, for a distance of 70.00 
feet, to ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, South 89° 43’48” East, departing said east line, for a distance of 300.00 feet, to a ½ 
inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, North, 00° 12’40” East, for a distance of 856.23 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set on a 
non-tangent curve to the right, having a radius of 60.00 feet, a central angle of 179° 59’07”; 
THENCE, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 188.513 feet (Chord Bearing North 
35° 54’14” East 120.00 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, North 00° 11’59” East, for a distance of 188.93 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set in the 
south line of Lovejoy Elementary  school No. 2, and addition to the city of Lucas, as described in 
Clerks File N0. 97-0045267, in said Deed Records; 
THENCE, South 89°11’ 30” East, along the eat line of said Lovejoy Elementary, for a distance 
of 780.50 feet, to a p/k nail found being in the north line of said 70.00 acre tract; 
THENCE, South 89° 27’06” East, along said north line, for a distance of 315.11 feet. To ½ inch 
iron rod set at northeast corner of said 70.00 acre tract; 



THENCE, South 00° 30’35” West, along the east line of said 70.00 acre tract, for a distance of 
1247.36 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, South 00° 03’59” West, along said east line, for a distance of 959.16 feet, to the point 
of BEGGINNING and containing 32.978 acres of land.   
 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, 
Texas (the “City”), will conduct a Public Hearing on Thursday , March 8, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. and 
City Council will conduct a second Public Hearing on Thursday, March 15, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at 
Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, Texas to consider a request for a change in zoning from 
AO to R-1 of a recently annexed parcel of land hereinafter described. Both public hearings will be 
held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property 
to be considered for Zoning is located in Collin County, Texas, and described as follows: 
   
BEING, a tract of land situated in the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract NO. 813, in Collin 
County, Texas, being out of a 70.00 acre tract, as described in Volume 3928, Page 145, in the 
Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:  
BEGINNING, at a 5/8 inch iron rod found the northwest corner of Lucas UMC, and addition to 
the City of Lucas, as described in Volume 948, Page 145, in said deed records; 
 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 420.19 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod found at the 
northwest corner of Lucas UMC; 
THENCE, North 00° 19’07” East, for a distance of 19.00 feet, to a ½ iron rod set; 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 333.41 feet, to a ½ iron set on a non-tangent 
curve to the left, having a radius of 665.00 feet, a central angle of 01°18’37”, and a tangent of 
7.60 feet; 
THENCE, along said curve to the left for an arc distance of 15.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 02° 
05’44” East 15.21 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set a curve to the right, having a radius of 65.00 feet, 
a central angle of 97°11’21”; 
THENCE, along said curve to the right for arc distance of  15.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 40° 
16’44” East 15.21 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set at the point of compound curvature of a curve to 
the right, having a radius of 735.00 feet, a central angle of 08°31’36”, and a tangent of 54.79 feet;  
THENCE, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 109.38 feet (Chord Bearing North 
04° 03’08” West 109.28 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set at the point of tangency; 
THENCE, North 00° 12’40” East, for a distance of 180.90 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 300.00 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set, in the 
east line of F.M. 1378 (90 R.O.W.); 
THENCE, North 00 ° 12’40” East, along the east line of said F.M. 1378, for a distance of 70.00 
feet, to ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, South 89° 43’48” East, departing said east line, for a distance of 300.00 feet, to a ½ 
inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, North, 00° 12’40” East, for a distance of 856.23 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set on a non-
tangent curve to the right, having a radius of 60.00 feet, a central angle of 179° 59’07”; 
THENCE, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 188.513 feet (Chord Bearing North 
35° 54’14” East 120.00 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, North 00° 11’59” East, for a distance of 188.93 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set in the 
south line of Lovejoy Elementary  school No. 2, and addition to the city of Lucas, as described in 
Clerks File N0. 97-0045267, in said Deed Records; 
THENCE, South 89°11’ 30” East, along the eat line of said Lovejoy Elementary, for a distance of 
780.50 feet, to a p/k nail found being in the north line of said 70.00 acre tract; 



THENCE, South 89° 27’06” East, along said north line, for a distance of 315.11 feet. To ½ inch 
iron rod set at northeast corner of said 70.00 acre tract; 
THENCE, South 00° 30’35” West, along the east line of said 70.00 acre tract, for a distance of 
1247.36 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
THENCE, South 00° 03’59” West, along said east line, for a distance of 959.16 feet, to the point 
of BEGGINNING and containing 32.978 acres of land.   
 
Otherwise known as Cimarron Estates. 
 

 
Those wishing to speak for or against the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable to 
attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention:  City Secretary, 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email shenderson@lucastexas.us and it will be 
presented at the hearing. If you have any question about the request contact Joe Hilbourn at 
jhilbourn@lucastexas.us. 
 
 
  
 
 
 

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


 
City of Lucas  
Ordinance 2018-03-00877 (Change in Zoning – Cimarron Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018          TM95550 

ORDINANCE 2018-03-00877 
[CHANGE IN ZONING – CIMARRON ESTATES] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A CHANGE IN 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R1-
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 1-ACRE LOTS, ON ±32.978-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND, BEING A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE 
BENJAMIN SPARKS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 813, IN COLLIN 
COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF A 70.00 ACRE-TRACT, AS DESCRIBED 
IN VOLUME 3928, PAGE 145, IN THE DEED RECORDS OF COLLIN 
COUNTY, TEXAS, MORE COMMONLY KNOWN AS CIMARRON 
ESTATES, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AND 
DEPICTED ON EXHIBIT “A” AND EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED HERETO; 
PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City Council 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with reference to the 
granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by publication and 
otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, and 
the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that said zoning change should 
be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map should be amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas, are 
hereby amended to grant a change in zoning from Agricultural District to R1-Single-Family 
Residential, 1-acre lots, on ±32.978-acre tract of land, being part of the Benjamin Sparks Survey, 
Abstract No. 813, in Collin County, Texas, being a part of a 70.00-acre tract, as described in Volume 
3928, Page 145, in the Deed Records of Collin County, and being more particularly described and 
depicted on Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.   
 
Section 2. To the extent of any irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of this ordinance and 
other ordinances of the City of Lucas governing the use and development of the Property and which 
are not expressly amended by this ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance shall be controlling.  
Section 3. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of 
said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 



 
City of Lucas  
Ordinance 2018-03-00877 (Change in Zoning – Cimarron Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018          TM95550 

Section 4. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 6. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as amended, 
and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall continue 
shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 7. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 15TH  DAY OF MARCH, 2018. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr.    Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(01-26-2018/95550) 
 
 
      



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance 2018-03-00877 (Change in Zoning – Cimarron Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(±32.978-Acre Tract – Cimarron Estates) 

Legal Description 
 

 
BEING, a tract of land situated in the Benjamin Sparks Survey, Abstract NO. 813, in Collin 
County, Texas, being out of a 70.00 acre tract, as described in Volume 3928, Page 145, in the 
Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:  
 
BEGINNING, at a 5/8 inch iron rod found the northwest corner of Lucas UMC, and addition to 
the City of Lucas, as described in Volume 948, Page 145, in said deed records; 
 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 420.19 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod found at the 
northwest corner of Lucas UMC; 
 
THENCE, North 00° 19’07” East, for a distance of 19.00 feet, to a ½ iron rod set; 
 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 333.41 feet, to a ½ iron set on a non-tangent 
curve to the left, having a radius of 665.00 feet, a central angle of 01°18’37”, and a tangent of 
7.60 feet; 
 
THENCE, along said curve to the left for an arc distance of 15.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 02° 
05’44” East 15.21 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set a curve to the right, having a radius of 65.00 
feet, a central angle of 97°11’21”; 
 
THENCE, along said curve to the right for arc distance of  15.21 feet (Chord Bearing South 40° 
16’44” East 15.21 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set at the point of compound curvature of a curve to 
the right, having a radius of 735.00 feet, a central angle of 08°31’36”, and a tangent of 54.79 
feet;  
 
THENCE, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 109.38 feet (Chord Bearing North 
04° 03’08” West 109.28 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set at the point of tangency; 
 
THENCE, North 00° 12’40” East, for a distance of 180.90 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
 
THENCE, North 89° 43’48” West, for a distance of 300.00 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set, in the 
east line of F.M. 1378 (90 R.O.W.); 
 
THENCE, North 00 ° 12’40” East, along the east line of said F.M. 1378, for a distance of 70.00 
feet, to ½ inch iron rod set; 
 
THENCE, South 89° 43’48” East, departing said east line, for a distance of 300.00 feet, to a ½ 
inch iron rod set; 
 
THENCE, North, 00° 12’40” East, for a distance of 856.23 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set on a 
non-tangent curve to the right, having a radius of 60.00 feet, a central angle of 179° 59’07”; 
 



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance 2018-03-00877 (Change in Zoning – Cimarron Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 

THENCE, along said curve to the right for an arc distance of 188.513 feet (Chord Bearing North 
35° 54’14” East 120.00 feet), to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
 
THENCE, North 00° 11’59” East, for a distance of 188.93 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set in the 
south line of Lovejoy Elementary School No. 2, and addition to the city of Lucas, as described in 
Clerks File N0. 97-0045267, in said Deed Records; 
 
THENCE, South 89°11’ 30” East, along the eat line of said Lovejoy Elementary, for a distance 
of 780.50 feet, to a p/k nail found being in the north line of said 70.00-acre tract; 
 
THENCE, South 89° 27’06” East, along said north line, for a distance of 315.11 feet. To ½ inch 
iron rod set at northeast corner of said 70.00-acre tract; 
 
THENCE, South 00° 30’35” West, along the east line of said 70.00-acre tract, for a distance of 
1247.36 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod set; 
 
THENCE, South 00° 03’59” West, along said east line, for a distance of 959.16 feet, to the point 
of BEGINNING and containing 32.978 acres of land.   
 
 
 
 
 



 
Exhibit “B” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2018-03-00877 (Change in Zoning – Cimarron Estates) 
Approved:  March 15, 2018 

EXHIBIT “B” 
(±32.978-Acre Tract – Cimarron Estates) 

Depiction 
 

 
 

 
 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider the request by Barrett Owens on behalf of Daniel and Lana Afseth for approval of a 
preliminary plat for a tract of land being 11.941 acres situated in the James Grayum Survey, 
abstract number 354 otherwise known as 1890 Estates Parkway. 
 
Background Information:  
 
The proposed subdivision is currently zoned R-2 and has five proposed lots all over 2-acres.  The 
plat conforms to the City’s requirements; however, because there is a creek running through 
every lot in the development, drainage is going to be a challenge is this small subdivision. The 
development will be required to meet all drainage standards.  
         
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Preliminary Plat 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended to unanimously approve the preliminary 
plat for 1890 Estates Parkway.  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the request by Barrett Owens on behalf of Daniel and Lana 
Afseth for a preliminary plat for a tract of land being 11.941 acres situated in the James Grayum 
Survey, abstract number 354 otherwise known as 1890 Estates Parkway. 
 
 
 





.

“ ” 

·



Item No. 08 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Assistant Fire Chief/Emergency Management Coordinator Lance Gant 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider the appropriation of $8,307 from unrestricted general fund to provide payment to ES&H 
of Dallas, LLC for the hazardous materials incident and response that occurred on October 25, 
2017. 
 
Background Information:  
 
On October 25, 2017, Lucas Fire-Rescue (LFR) and Collin County Sheriff Office (CCSO) 
responded to a medical call for two unconscious males in a lawn service vehicle. Upon arrival, 
two males were found deceased in the vehicle and a strong chemical smell was observed by LFR 
and CCSO. Scene was determined to involve hazardous materials and appropriate actions were 
taken by LFR. LFR contacted ES&H of Dallas, LLC to assist in the response, decontamination, 
and disposal.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. ES&H of Dallas, LLC Report 
2. ES&H of Dallas, LLC Invoice 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The cost of service provided by ES&H of Dallas is $8,306.83. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the request and will continue to work with the City Attorney 
to seek reimbursement from the insurance company.  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny appropriating $8,307 from unrestricted general fund to provide 
payment to ES&H of Dallas, LLC for the hazardous materials incident and response that occurred 
on October 25, 2017. 
 

 



24 HR Emergency Response Hotline: (877) 437-2634 

 
 
   

  

DALLAS-FT. WORTH * MIDLAND-ODESSA 

 
INCIDENT REPORT 

ES&H Project Number 10-152-17-DFW 
Client 2 RJP 

Ventures, 
LLC 

PO# or AFE# N/A Date of Response 10-25-17 

Client Address 2400 Stallion ST 
City Carrollton State TX Zip Code 75010 
Contact Name N/A 
Primary Phone Number N/A Secondary Phone Number N/A 

 
Incident Location Name Lucas TX 
Incident Location Address Enchanted Way & Sarah Cove 
City Lucas State TX Zip Code       
On Site Contact Name Lance Gant On Site Contact Number 214-251-9141 
Wellsite Name (if applicable) N/A 
Incident Coordinates Latitude N/A Longitude N/A 
Responsible Party Name Lawn Doctor 
Responsible Party Address  
City  State  Zip Code  

 
SOSC (State on Scene Coordinator): N/A Contact #: N/A 
FOSC (Federal on Scene Coordinator): N/A Contact #: N/A 

 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Incident Report #: N/A 
National Response Center Incident Report #: N/A 

 
Underground Utility Locate Confirmation #: N/A 
Utility Companies Affected 0 

 
 

Call Received Time: 1830 Depart Office Time: 1900 
On Site Time: 2000 Return to office or end destination time: 0430 
Complete Project Time: 0600   

 
 

Product Spilled: Unknown Amount/Quantity: Unknown 
Storm Drain Impaction (yes or No): No 

 
 

Describe site conditions, cause of concern & nature of imminent threat to life & health or the environment: 
ES&H dispatched a crew to the location for initial response and evaluation of the site. Upon arrival, the ES&H 
supervisor surveyed the immediate area to begin developing a plan of action.  



24 HR Emergency Response Hotline: (877) 437-2634 

 
 
   

  

DALLAS-FT. WORTH * MIDLAND-ODESSA 

 
 
 

Describe response goals developed & used to abate the imminent threats described above: 
Lucas Fire Department called ES&H for a crew to assist with an unknown chemical release inside of a Lawn Doctor 
service vehicle. ES&H assisted the fire department entering the hot zone and identifying the chemical that was 
suspected of off gassing. ES&H lab packed the chemicals inside the vehicle. The Vehicle was transported to the ME’s 
office where ES&H suited up and removed the deceased individuals from the vehicle. ES&H deconned the individuals 
for the ME. This concluded all site work. 

 
Describe site safety actions performed at site: 
ES&H Supervisor held a tailgate safety discuss and inform the crew all hazards and safety precautions. ES&H crew 
donned proper PPE prior to any work being performed.  

 
Additional narrative for incident response: 
 

 
WASTE SUMMARY 
 

 

# Used: N/A Container Size N/A 
 

 
Total amount of solid waste generated: N/A 
Total amount of liquid waste generated: N/A 

 

 

Landfill Name: N/A Address: N/A 
 

Recycler Name: N/A Address: N/A 
 

Facility Name: N/A Address: N/A 
 

Analytical Performed for Disposal: None 
Analytical Performed for Clearance/Background: N/A 
Name of Laboratory Used: N/A 
City N/A State N/A Zip Code N/A Phone N/A 

  



24 HR Emergency Response Hotline: (877) 437-2634 

 
 
   

  

DALLAS-FT. WORTH * MIDLAND-ODESSA 

PICTURES 
 

 

 
 

Supervisor Name & Information: Matthew Shockey      mshockey@esh-dallas.com       817.992.1105 
 
 

 

mailto:mshockey@esh-dallas.com










Item No. 09 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Provide direction to staff regarding the opportunity to add a fourth approach from 995 W. Lucas 
Road to the Country Club Road/W. Lucas Road intersection and make improvements to the 
northwest corner of the same intersection. 
 
Background Information:  
 
The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is planning to update the traffic signal at this 
intersection in June or July.  Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster met with 
TxDOT to discuss two main items:  1) improvements to the city property on the northwest corner 
to eliminate the W. Lucas Road ditch and the need for guardrail and 2) a fourth leg/new 
driveway on the south side of the intersection to improve access to the commercial businesses at 
995 (Willard property) and 1005 (Craig’s Car Care) W. Lucas Road.  TxDOT is requiring the 
city to start the construction by the end of April 2018.   
 
On September 21 and October 19, 2017, the City Council was briefed by staff on the opportunity 
to improve safety in this intersection.  The City Council directed the City Manager to contact the 
property owners impacted by the addition of the fourth approach. 
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster has communicated directly with Alan 
Spurgin, Bobby Willard, and Craig Zale. 
 
Alan Spurgin (1015 W. Lucas Road) involvement is very minor.  The driveway to his home is 
not much of a factor.  Craig Zale is willing to let Mr. Spurgin use the new easement across Mr. 
Zale’s property. 
 
Craig Zale of Craig’s Car Care (1005 W. Lucas Road) is willing to make changes to his drive 
and allowing cross traffic within a new easement. 
 
Bobby Willard (995 W. Lucas Road) has not committed to this project. 
 
The Public Works Director has determined that 1045 and 945 W. Lucas Road, given the current 
uses, should not be required to participate by closing their driveways and using the proposed new 
fourth approach. 
 
When the new turn lanes were added to the intersection in 2013, modifications were made to the 
drainage system.  These improvements are causing unforeseen issues with the pavement integrity 
and need to be addressed.  The quantities and schematic plans for the fourth leg were added to 
the Stinson Road/W. Lucas Road Bid Items as an “Additive Alternate”.  This was done by staff 



Item No. 09 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

to determine the cost of the new driveway and drainage improvements.  Bids on this project will 
be received on March 8, 2018, and the numbers will be sent to the City Council under separate 
cover.  These numbers are also needed to make application with the North Central Texas Council 
of Governments to use RTR funds for the driveway and drainage improvements. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Birkhoff Additive Alternative Plans 
2. Schematic One 
3. Schematic Two 
4. TxDOT Schematic & Right-Of-Way Map 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The use of RTR funds, roadway impact fees and/or Road Maintenance fund could be used 
depending on the scope of the work.  Staff has contacted the NCTCOG about the use of the RTR 
funds for this work. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends proceeding with the addition 
of the fourth approach. 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to give direction to the City Manager: 
 
1) work with TxDOT and add a fourth approach from 995 W. Lucas Road to the Country Club 
Road/W. Lucas Road intersection; 
 
2) make drainage improvements to the northwest corner of the same intersection; and 
 
3) fund this work using RTR funding, roadway impact fees, and/or Road Maintenance funds. 
 



j:\clerical\lucas\2016-148 stinson & lucas p&d\specs\addendum\add-1.docx - 2 - Addendum No. 1 

CITY  OF  LUCAS,  TEXAS 
STINSON ROAD PAVING & DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 

Bid 012-18 
 

ADDENDUM  NO.  1 
 
 
 
Plans and specifications for the Stinson Road Paving & Drainage Improvements project, for the City of Lucas, 
Texas, on which bids are to be received until 2:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 8, 2018, are hereby modified as 
follows: 

1. Refer to the PROPOSAL  &  BID  SCHEDULE: 

 Strike pages PBS-7 through PBS-13 and replace with pages PBS-7A through PBS-14A attached marked 
Addendum No. 1 in the lower right corner. 

2. Refer to the SPECIAL  CONDITIONS: 

A. Strike the body of SC.06 Time and Order of Completion and replace with the following: 

“The contractor shall include the amount of calendar days necessary to complete the base bid and the 
amount of calendar days necessary to complete the additive alternate on the proposal and bid schedule.  
Time shall commence on the tenth (10th) day after the issuance of the work order.  The work order shall 
consist of a written request by the Owner to the Contractor to proceed with construction of the project. 

No work may begin within TxDOT right-of-way until authorization is provided by the City or their 
representative.  Plans have been submitted to TxDOT and the City is waiting on approval of the driveway 
permit.” 

B. Add the following special condition: 

“SC. 53 Traffic Control 

The Contractor shall submit a traffic control and phasing plan for Stinson Road to the City for review prior 
to construction activities.  The right turn movement from eastbound FM 1378 (W. Lucas Road) to 
southbound Stinson Road must be maintained and accessible throughout all phases of construction.” 

3. Refer to the CONSTRUCTION  PLANS: 

Add construction plan sheets 33 through 38 attached marked Addendum No. 1 in the lower left corner.  
These plan sheets cover the scope of work associated with Additive Alternate No. 1. 

 

 

 

 

 





Item
No.

Estimated
Quantity Unit

 Price in
Figures 

 Extended
Amount 

201 1 L.S.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

202 200 C.Y.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

203 230 S.Y.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

204 369 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

205 61 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

Square Yard

Remove & Dispose of 2-24" Corrugated Metal 
Culvert Pipe

Linear Foot

Linear Foot

Remove & Dispose of Metal Beam Guard Fence

Lump Sum

COUNTRY  CLUB  ROAD  &  W. LUCAS  ROAD  INTERSECTION  IMPROVEMENTS
ADDITIVE  ALTERNATE  NO. 1

BID  SCHEDULE

Description and Price in Words

Prepare Right-of-Way, Insurance, Bonds & 
Mobilization

Remove & Dispose of Asphalt Pavement

Unclassified Excavation

Cubic Yard

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2016-148 Stinson & Lucas P&D\Specs\Tech-Spec\05-P&BS-2.xlsx PBS-7A Addendum No. 1



Item
No.

Estimated
Quantity Unit

 Price in
Figures 

 Extended
Amount Description and Price in Words

206 20 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

207 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

208 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

209 2 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

210 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

211 1 L.S.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

Each

Each

Each

Linear Foot

Each

Remove & Dispose of 24-inch Culvert Headwall

Remove, Stockpile & Re-Install Concrete Riprap

Lump Sum

Remove & Dispose of 2-24" Reinforced 
Concrete Culvert Pipe and Concrete Headwalls

Remove & Replace Road Sign Assembly

Remove & Dispose of 36-inch Safety End 
Treatment

Remove & Dispose of Road Sign Assembly

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2016-148 Stinson & Lucas P&D\Specs\Tech-Spec\05-P&BS-2.xlsx PBS-8A Addendum No. 1



Item
No.

Estimated
Quantity Unit

 Price in
Figures 

 Extended
Amount Description and Price in Words

212 50 Tons
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

213 70 Tons
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

214 125 Tons
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

215 5 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

216 53 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

217 82 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per Linear Foot

Linear Foot

Linear Foot

Furnish & Install 24-Inch Reinforced Concrete 
Pipe

Furnish & Install 18-Inch Reinforced Concrete 
Pipe

Furnish & Install 36-Inch Reinforced Concrete 
Pipe

Ton

Ton

Furnish & Install 8-Inch Flex Base

Furnish & Install Type 'B' HMAC

Furnish & Install Type 'D' HMAC

Ton

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2016-148 Stinson & Lucas P&D\Specs\Tech-Spec\05-P&BS-2.xlsx PBS-9A Addendum No. 1



Item
No.

Estimated
Quantity Unit

 Price in
Figures 

 Extended
Amount Description and Price in Words

218 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

219 3 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

220 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

221 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

222 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

223 1 Ea.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

Connect to Existing 24-Inch RCP with a 
Concrete Collar

Each

Connect to Existing 36-Inch RCP with a 
Concrete Collar

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Furnish & Install 36-Inch Safety End Treatment

Furnish & Install 24-Inch Safety End Treatment

Furnish & Install 18-Inch TxDOT CH-FW-0 
Headwall

Furnish & Install 24-Inch TxDOT CH-FW-0 
Headwall

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2016-148 Stinson & Lucas P&D\Specs\Tech-Spec\05-P&BS-2.xlsx PBS-10A Addendum No. 1



Item
No.

Estimated
Quantity Unit

 Price in
Figures 

 Extended
Amount Description and Price in Words

224 200 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

225 50 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

226 12 L.F.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

227 1 L.S.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

228 1,000 S.Y.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

229 1 L.S.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

Lump Sum

Furnish & Install Double 4-Inch Yellow 
Thermoplastic Stripe with Buttons

Linear Foot

Furnish, Install & Maintain Solid Block Sod

Furnish & Install 4-Inch Solid White 
Thermoplatic Stripe

Linear Foot

Furnish & Install 24-Inch Solid White 
Thermoplatic Stripe

Linear Foot

Remove Existing Striping and Buttons from 
Proposed Left Turn Lane on F.M. 1378

Square Yard

Furnish Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

Lump Sum

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2016-148 Stinson & Lucas P&D\Specs\Tech-Spec\05-P&BS-2.xlsx PBS-11A Addendum No. 1



Item
No.

Estimated
Quantity Unit

 Price in
Figures 

 Extended
Amount Description and Price in Words

230 1 L.S.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

231 1 L.S.
complete in place, the sum of

Dollars
and
Cents per

AMOUNT  OF  BID:  ADDITIVE ALTERNATE NO. 1  (Items  201  Through  231)

Lump Sum

Furinsh, Install, Maintin & Remove Traffic 
Control Devices

Lump Sum

Furnish, Install, Maintain & Remove Erosion 
Control Devices

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2016-148 Stinson & Lucas P&D\Specs\Tech-Spec\05-P&BS-2.xlsx PBS-12A Addendum No. 1



AMOUNT  OF  BASE  BID  (Items  101  Through  125) -$                                

AMOUNT  OF  BID:  ADDITIVE ALTERNATE NO. 1  (Items  201  Through  231) -$                                

TOTAL  AMOUNT  OF  BID  (Base Bid + Additive Alternate No. 1) $

TOTAL CALENDAR DAYS FOR BASE BID calendar days

TOTAL CALENDAR DAYS FOR ADDITVE ALTERNATE NO. 1 calendar days

TOTAL  AMOUNT  OF  CALENDAR DAYS  (Base Bid + Additive Alternate 
No. 1) calendar days

CITY  OF  LUCAS,  TEXAS
Stinson Road Paving & Drainage Improvements

SUMMARY  OF  BIDS

J:\CLERICAL\Lucas\2016-148 Stinson & Lucas P&D\Specs\Tech-Spec\05-P&BS-2.xlsx PBS-13A Addendum No. 1



j:\clerical\lucas\2016-148 stinson & lucas p&d\specs\tech-spec\06-p&bs-3.docx PBS-14A Addendum No. 1 

 
  In the event of the award of a contract to the undersigned, the undersigned will furnish a 
Performance Bond and a Payment Bond for the full amount of the contract, to secure compliance with the terms 
and provisions of the Contract Documents. 
 
  The work proposed to be done shall be accepted when fully completed and finished in accordance 
with the plans and specifications. 
 
  The undersigned certifies that the bid prices contained in this proposal have been carefully checked 
and are submitted as correct and final. 
 

NOTE: Unit and lump sum prices must be shown in words and figures for 
each item listed in the proposal and in the event of discrepancy the 
words shall control. 

 
  Receipt is hereby acknowledged for the following addenda to the contract documents: 
 

Addendum No. 1 dated  Received  
Addendum No. 2 dated  Received  
Addendum No. 3 dated  Received  
Addendum No. 4 dated  Received  
Addendum No. 5 dated  Received  

 
 
 

 
Contractor 

By:  
(please print name) 

Signature:  

Title:  

Seal and Authorization  
(If a Corporation) Address 

 
City, County, State and Zip 

  
Telephone Fax No. 

E-Mail Address:  
 

























Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

 
Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction agreement for the 
construction of the White Rock Trail Repairs with 1) DDM Construction Corporation in an 
amount not to exceed $187,590.00 plus 25% contingency in the amount of $46,800.00 for a total 
of $234,390 or 2) GRod Construction, LLC in an amount not to exceed $252,842.00 plus a 15% 
Contingency in the amount of $37,926.00 for a total of $290,768 using funds in account 11-
8209-301 “Improvements Roads”.  
 
Background Information:  
 
White Rock Trail was one of the first concrete streets in Lucas.  The pavement is thin and was 
not constructed properly nor was it designed to handle the current traffic volume using it today.  
The pavement deteriorated significantly while used as a detour for the Blondy Jhune Bridge 
project.  During the June 1, 2017 City Council meeting, $243,455 was earmarked for this project. 
 
On August 3, 2017, the City Council authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
GT Construction, Inc. for pavement repair to White Rock Trail utilizing an interlocal with the 
City of Wylie, Texas in an amount not to exceed $243,455 plus a 20% contingency for a total of 
$292,146 and using funds from 11-8209-301 “Improvements Roads”. 
 
The contractor started on the project, but due to failures in the concrete not reaching full strength 
in the allotted 28-day timeframe, the project was concluded in December 2017.   
 
Staff advertised the project on February 8 and 15, 2018.  Nine bids were opened on February 23, 
2018.  The bids ranged in price from $187,590.00 to $394,722.00. 
   
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Bid #011-18 Bid Tabulations 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
Balance in Account 11-8209-301 is $345,327. 
 
Recommendation:  
 



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends entering into a construction 
agreement with GRod Construction, LLC. 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into a construction agreement for the 
construction of the White Rock Trail Repairs (Bid 011-18) with the following: 
 
1) DDM Construction Corporation in an amount not to exceed $187,590.00 plus 25% 
contingency in the amount of $46,800.00 for a total of $232,390.00 and using funds in account 
11-8209-301 “Improvements Roads”; or 
 
2) GRod Construction, LLC in an amount not to exceed $252,842.00 plus a 15% Contingency in 
the amount of $37,926.00 for a total of $290,768.00 and using funds in account 11-8209-301 
“Improvements Roads”. 
 



WHITE ROCK TRAIL REPAIRS BID 011-18

Item No. Description Estimated Unit

Quantity

1 Mobilization 1 Sta 9,000.00$        9,000.00$        20,000.00$      20,000.00$      14,500.00$      14,500.00$      17,000.00$      17,000.00$      

2 Removal-Pvmt 2750 SY 8.00$               22,000.00$      9.00$               24,750.00$      16.00$             44,000.00$      14.00$             38,500.00$      

3 Removal-Drive 47 SY 20.00$             940.00$           19.00$             893.00$           16.00$             752.00$           12.00$             564.00$           

4 Excavation 330 CY 40.00$             13,200.00$      45.00$             14,850.00$      39.00$             12,870.00$      26.00$             8,580.00$        

5 Flexbase 330 CY 90.00$             29,700.00$      90.00$             29,700.00$      69.00$             22,770.00$      58.00$             19,140.00$      

6 Concrete-Pvmt 2750 SY 39.00$             107,250.00$    50.00$             137,500.00$    52.00$             143,000.00$    57.00$             156,750.00$    

7 Concrete-Drive 100 SY 20.00$             2,000.00$        73.00$             7,300.00$        72.00$             7,200.00$        62.00$             6,200.00$        

9 Sod 750 SY 3.00$               2,250.00$        10.00$             7,500.00$        7.00$               5,250.00$        6.00$               4,500.00$        

10 TCD 1 LS 1,250.00$        1,250.00$        7,150.00$        7,150.00$        2,500.00$        2,500.00$        4,000.00$        4,000.00$        

Total 187,590.00$    249,643.00$    252,842.00$    255,234.00$    

271,202.00$    

Average Unit Average

Price of B-G Less A

10,000.00$      10,000.00$      7,000.00$        7,000.00$        21,000.00$      21,000.00$      64,177.64$      64,177.64$      20,000.00$      20,000.00$      14,916.67$      5,916.67$        

22.00$             60,500.00$      12.00$             33,000.00$      10.50$             28,875.00$      15.97$             43,917.50$      36.00$             99,000.00$      13.92$             5.92$               

25.00$             1,175.00$        10.00$             470.00$           25.20$             1,184.40$        18.33$             861.51$           36.00$             1,692.00$        17.87$             (2.13)$              

30.00$             9,900.00$        12.00$             3,960.00$        21.00$             6,930.00$        86.93$             28,686.90$      43.00$             14,190.00$      28.83$             (11.17)$            

85.00$             28,050.00$      18.00$             5,940.00$        73.50$             24,255.00$      111.55$           36,811.50$      53.00$             17,490.00$      65.58$             (24.42)$            

50.00$             137,500.00$    75.00$             206,250.00$    73.50$             202,125.00$    48.15$             132,412.50$    76.00$             209,000.00$    59.58$             20.58$             

60.00$             6,000.00$        70.00$             7,000.00$        73.50$             7,350.00$        54.18$             5,418.00$        76.00$             7,600.00$        68.42$             48.42$             

10.00$             7,500.00$        12.00$             9,000.00$        5.25$               3,937.50$        38.25$             28,686.00$      17.00$             12,750.00$      8.38$               5.38$               

3,500.00$        3,500.00$        1,500.00$        1,500.00$        2,000.00$        2,000.00$        4,320.00$        4,320.00$        13,000.00$      13,000.00$      3,441.67$        2,191.67$        

264,125.00$    274,120.00$    297,656.90$    345,291.55$    394,722.00$    

H. PAVE IT INC I. HQS

D. JESKE

E. XIT PAVING F. LA BANDA G. ED BELL

A. DDM B. AUSTIN RAYMOND C. GROD



Item No. 11 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider various design elements of the Winningkoff Road Middle Section from the Reverse 
Curve Project to Snider Lane.  
 
Background Information:  
 
In early 2017, Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster’s initial estimate for this 
project was $1,400,000 (design and construction).  On October 19, 2017, the City Council 
authorized the City Manager to enter into a professional services contract with Birkhoff, 
Hendricks & Carter, LLP in the amount of $215,850 for the design of the Winningkoff Road 
Middle Section Project using funds from FY 17-18 account 21-8210-491-127.  Birkhoff’s initial 
estimate for the project was $1,630,000 (design and construction).  This number contemplated 
three 10-foot by five-foot box culverts at a cost of $160,000+/-.  The consultant has raised an 
issue regarding the cost of the culvert crossing Winningkoff Road 300 feet north of Manor Lane.  
The existing culvert consist of a 78-inch corrugated metal pipe (CMP) and needs to be replaced 
with three 10-foot by six-foot box culverts at a cost of $200,000 to $250,000. 
   
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Arial of Winningkoff Road Culvert 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
As discussed in the October 19, 2017, City Council meeting, the difference between staff’s 
estimate and the consultant’s estimate was $230,000.  The increase in culvert size might add 
$40,000 to 90,000 to the cost of the project.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends replacing the existing culvert 
with three 10-foot by six-foot by box culverts. 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 



1290 Winningkoff Rd

1426 Winningkoff Rd

1290 Winningkoff Rd

Manor Lane

W
in

n
in

gk
o

ff
 R

d



Item No. 12 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 15, 2018 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Executive Session.   
 
An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 


	00 - 03-15-2018 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	March 15, 2018
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, March 15, 2018 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As au...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City ...
	Community Interest
	Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders...
	Consent Agenda
	All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.
	Public Hearing Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during t...
	Certification



	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	03a - 03-01-2018 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	March 1, 2018
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Public Hearing Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session


	03b - Lovejoy ISD EMS Services 2018 pdf
	04 - Claremont Springs zoning cs
	04a - Claremont Springs depiction
	04b - Claremont Springs legal desc
	04c - NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS Claremont Springs
	04d - Ordinance Claremont Springs Change in Zoning
	05 - Edgewood Estates zoning cs
	05a - Exhibit B Edgewood
	05b - Exhibit A Legal Desc Edgewood Estates
	05c - NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS Edgewood estates Zoning
	05d - Ordinance Change in Zoning Edgewood Estates
	06 - Cimarron Estates Zoning cs
	06a - Cimarron depiction
	06b - Exhibit A Legal Desc Cimarron zoning case
	06c - NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS Cimaron zoning
	06d - Ordinance Cimarron Estates Change in Zoning
	07 - Lee Estates
	07a - Preliminary Plat Lee estates
	Sheets and Views
	8361 Preliminary Plat-Preliminary Plat
	8361 Preliminary Plat-Preliminary Plat (2)


	08 - Hazardous Materials Incident cs
	08a - ESH Incident Report
	INCIDENT REPORT
	WASTE SUMMARY
	PICTURES

	08b - ESH Invoice
	09 - W Lucas Road-Country Club Road Intersection cs
	09a - Birkhoff Add Alternate
	09b - Schematics
	10 - White Rock Trail Repairs Award cs
	10a - White Rock Bids 20180223
	11 - Winningkoff Road Middle Section Design Update cs
	11a - Winningkoff Road Culvert
	12 - Executive Session cs



